








July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2020

ELKO CONVENTION CENTER, TURQUOISE ROOM,
700 MOREN WAY, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Jeff Dalling
Stefan Beck
John Anderson
Gratton Miller
Giovanni Puccinelli

Excused: Tera Hooiman
Evi Buell

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, wanted to make a comment on the COVID precautions
that the City has. In order to abide by the City Managers Directive we are practicing social
distancing, and everyone also needs to wear a mask.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

May 5, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the minutes of the May 5, 2020 meeting.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

June 2, 2020 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 8

***Motion: Approve the minutes of the June 2, 2020 meeting.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Giovanni Puccinelli.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 3-20, filed by Scott
Reutner Properties, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Aspen
Heights involving the proposed division of approximately 2.54 acres of property into
9 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Subject property is located on the south side of Celtic Way between Shadow Ridge
Drive and Sunnyside Avenue. (APN 001-660-011)

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated June 11,
2020. Staff recommended approved with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, had no concerns.

Ms. Rambo stated that the City Manager’s office had no comments or concerns, and neither did
the Engineering Department.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to accept, on behalf of the public,
the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with the terms of the
offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with the tentative map; that
the City Council approve the agreement to install improvements in accordance with the
approved construction plans that satisfies the requirements of Title 2, Chapter 3, and
conditionally approve Final Map 3-20 with conditions listed in the Staff Report dated June
11, 2020, listed as follows:

Community Development:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in
accordance with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be
secured in accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section
3-3-21 of City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no
later than two (2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless
extended as stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City
Council.



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 8

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within
30 days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council or the Final Map approval
becomes null and void.

4. The Final Map for Aspen Heights is approved for 9 single family residential lots.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Site disturbance (including grading) shall not commence prior to approval of the
project’s construction plans by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council
and issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

8. Building permits will not be issued until the water system is approved to be put in
service by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

9. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the
qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to
the City of Elko.  The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest
edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works.  The Engineer of Record is
to certify that the project was completed in conformance with the approved plans and
specifications.

Public Works:
1. All public improvements at time of development per Elko City code.

Commission Beck’s findings to support the motion were the Final Map for Aspen Heights
has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with
NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative
Map. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9
through 3-3-16 (inclusive). The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required
improvements in conformance with Section 3-3-17 of City Code. The Subdivider has
submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of City Code. The
Subdivider has submitted plans to the City and State Agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City Code. The
Subdivider has submitted construction plans, which having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City Code, have been approved by City Staff. The
Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to Section
3-3-21 of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and
Maintenance Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with
Section 3-3-22 of City Code. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4,
3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed development is in conformance
with Section 3-8 of City Code.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Gratton Miller.



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 8

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Parcel Map
5-20, filed by City of Elko. The parcel map creates four parcels from the existing
one parcel and contains an offer of dedication for right-of-way for a portion of
Wright Way, Rocky Road and Jennings Way. Due to the dedication, it is referred to
the Planning Commission with recommendation to the City Council, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The parcel map creates four parcels from the one parcel owned by the applicant, City
of Elko. The map will be dedicating a portion of Wright Way, Rocky Road and
Jennings Way to the City of Elko.

Ms. Laughlin wanted to give a little history on the parcel. The City of Elko owns the parcel; a
land exchange was done with the BLM to get this piece of land. The City has had several entities
interested in this piece of land, including the Elko County School District and the Bureau of
Veteran Affairs. The VA would like a portion of parcel, not the whole 30 acres. They would like
15 acres in the center for a Veteran’s Cemetery. There has been discussion with the VA for many
months on several different locations throughout the City. They have focused on this particular
parcel. They put together the parcel map, they are creating four parcels out of the one parcel, and
there are some roadway dedications. Whenever there is a parcel map that goes to the center of
the street, the City asks that that half of the street be dedicated to the City as part of the Parcel
Map process. The right-of-way for Wright Way, Rocky Road and Jennings Way will be
dedicated in the parcel map. Whenever there is a dedicated right-of-way proposed in a Parcel
Map, it is brought to the Planning Commission for review, consideration, and recommendation to
the City Council. Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated June 23, 2020.
Staff recommended approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo stated that the Development Department, Fire Department, Engineering Department,
and City Manager’s Office had no comments.

Commission Gratton Miller asked how serious the VA was about purchasing this property.

Ms. Laughlin explained that an agreement was approved with the VA and it is currently in their
process. Part of the process was doing the parcel map, another part of the process will be getting
a geological survey, historical survey, and anything else that the government requires them to do.
They are in that process and the City does have an agreement with them. We have not seen the
appraisal come back, which is also part of the process and the VA’s responsibility.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Parcel Map
No. 5-20 subject to the conditions from the Development Department’s memo June 23, 2020,
listed as follows:

1. Prior to map recordation, a Master Plan Amendment is required to change the Master
Plan designation from Residential Medium Density to Public (or other appropriate
designation).



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 8

2. Prior to map recordation, a Zone Change is required to change the zoning designation
from General Agriculture to Public/Quasi-Public (or other appropriate designation).

3. All required public improvements (including any off-site improvements) required as
future development occurs must be designed and constructed per current City of Elko
code requirements in place at that time.

4. The Parcel Map shall be recorded by Elko County within two (2) years of this approval.

5. Prior to map recordation, add a note to the map stating that all public improvements are
to be installed at time of the development of each parcel.

6. Future water and sewer will need to be extended from the residential neighborhood to the
east.  The water line shall be a minimum of 10 inches and the sewer line shall be a
minimum of 8 inches per City Code.

Commissioner Beck’s findings to support the recommendation was the parcel map conforms
with the City of Elko Master Plan Transportation component, the City of Elko Wellhead
Protection Plan, and the City of Elko Code Sections 2-13-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-13, 3-8, and 3-3-24, and
3-3-28. The proposed development is not in strict conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Giovanni Puccinelli.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

3. Review, consideration, and possible action to an amendment to the City of Elko
Master Plan, specifically amending: 1) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas
Map 8 on six parcels of land located on S. 5th Street generally between Carlin Court
and S. 9th Street; 2) adding RO (Residential Office) as a corresponding zoning under
the Downtown Mixed-Use land use designation, and 3) the Proposed Future Land
Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on one parcel located at the western terminus of Rocky Road,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Recent development applications have revealed some inconsistencies between
existing Zoning districts and Master Plan designations.  The proposed amendment
cleans up these inconsistencies. NRS Section 278.210(5) allows Master Plans to be
amended up to four times a year.  This amendment is the second in 2020.

Ms. Rambo went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated June 22, 2020.

Ms. Laughlin explained that the Planning Department worked with the Development Department
on this Master Plan Amendment, so she recommended approval.

Ms. Rambo stated that Engineering, Fire, and the City Manager’s Office had no comments or
concerns.



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 8

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending:
1) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on six parcels of land located on S. 5th
Street generally between Carlin Court and S. 9th Street; 2) adding RO (Residential Office)
as a corresponding zoning under the Downtown Mixed-Use land use designation, and 3) the
Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on one parcel located at the western terminus
of Rocky Road, and direct staff to bring the item back as a resolution and public hearing.

Moved by Gratton Miller, seconded by Giovanni Puccinelli.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

4. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko district boundaries, specifically APN 001-472-014, removing the C-General
Commercial Zoning District and replacing with the PQP- Public, Quasi-Public
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code Section 3-2-21 allows the Planning Commission to initiate on its
own motion a change to the district boundaries. The City of Elko owns the parcel
and the building has been occupied for many years as a fire station. This amendment,
initiated by the Planning Commission, if approved, will bring back as a public
hearing a rezone of the parcel from C-General Commercial to PQP- Public Quasi-
Public.

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated June 17, 2020. Staff
recommended the Planning Commission initiate an amendment to the City of Elko District
Boundary.

Ms. Rambo stated that Development, Engineering, Fire, and City Manager’s Office had no
comments or concerns.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district boundaries, and direct staff
to bring the item back as a public hearing.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

5. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko district boundaries, specifically APN 001-01A-012, removing the AG-General
Agriculture Zoning District and replacing with the PQP- Public, Quasi-Public
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code Section 3-2-21 allows the Planning Commission to initiate on its
own motion a change to the district boundaries. The City of Elko owns the parcel



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 8

and the VA is proposing to purchase a portion of the property for a future VA
Cemetery. This amendment, initiated by the Planning Commission, if approved, will
bring back the zone amendment as a public hearing to rezone the parcel from AG-
General Agriculture to PQP- Public Quasi-Public.

Ms. Laughlin went over City of Elko Staff Report dated June 22, 2020. Staff recommended that
the Planning Commission initiate an amendment to the City of Elko District Boundary.

Ms. Rambo stated that Development, Engineering, Fire, and City Manager’s office had no
comments or concerns.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district boundaries, and direct staff
to bring the item back as a public hearing.

Moved by Stefan Beck, seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that at the June 9th City Council Meeting, they approved a deed of
dedication for the West Front Street extension, and BLA for the same property. Staff has
been working on that for almost 1 year. Some land transactions and previous agreements
were done between two different parties and the City of Elko, which were not done
correctly. It was brought to staff’s attention to clean up, they were working on it for nearly
a year, and it is finally done. City Council approved a Revocable Permit for the 9th & Court
Street property for a foot of the alley to accommodate their off street parking. On the June
23rd City Council meeting they approved the vacation for Starkey for the corner of 6th &
Juniper. Planning Commission meeting will continue to take place in this room for at least
the next month. There are two Commissioners up for reappointment, and both wanted to
be reappointed, so that will be on the Consent Agenda for City Council on July 14th.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.



July 7, 2020 City of Elko Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 8

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1. 

Created on 07/17/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 5-20, filed by BDSA, LLC for the 

development of a subdivision entitled Tower Hill Unit 4 involving the proposed 

division of approximately 8.601 acres of property into 5 lots for residential 

development and 1 remainder lot within the R1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning 

District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located northeast of Lamoille Highway 

and south of Stitzel Road.  (APN 001-929-125) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 5-20 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 20, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  BDSA, LLC 

Attn: Scott Macritchie 

312 Four Mile Trail 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

High Desert Engineering 

Attn: Tom Ballew 

640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

 

 





Page 1 of 14

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: July 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 5-20
APPLICANT: BDSA, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tower Hill Unit 4

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 8.601 acres of property into 5
lots for residential development and 1 remainder lot within a R1 (Single-Family
Residential) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in
this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 2 of 14

SUMMARY NARRATIVE

The proposed subdivision is an extension of the developing Tower Hill subdivision located at the
south end of Stitzel Drive.  The 8.601-acre parcel in question would be divided into five
additional residential lots and a large remainder lot for further expansion in the future. The site
has already been mass-graded, but some additional grading will be needed to bring the five
proposed residential lots into the water service area.  Three of the five lots will extend down the
hillside to Lamoille Highway, but the slope area is to remain undisturbed.  However, once the
lots are sold, each individual homeowner may propose changes to this hillside, which will be
evaluated by City Staff to determine if there will be impacts to such things as drainage, soil
runoff, etc.  Water and sewer service will be extended to Unit 4 via Unit 3, which is currently
under construction.

A Slope Analysis was completed, which showed the average slope of the property to be 14.53%.
Section 3-2-28 states that hillside development standards and regulations are required for site
with an average slope of 15% or greater.

The developer is also required to extend their fair-share portion of the shared-use path on
Lamoille Highway.  Due to ongoing design issues where the path currently ends (south of Pinion
Road), the developer has agreed to provide this extension from Errecart Drive heading north.

The proposed Tentative Map conforms with all city documents, plans, and ordinances. In
addition, all required findings can be made in the affirmative. A Modification of Standards is
required for four of the five lots to accommodate the smaller lot widths around the bulb of the
cul-de-sac, which is included as part of this approval.

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-929-125

PARCEL SIZE: 8.601 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single-Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 3 of 14

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R) / Developed
 South: General Agriculture / Vacant
 East: Elko County / Scattered Single-Family Residences
 West: General Commercial (C) / Vacant

Planned Commercial (PC) / Vacant

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the north and northwest, vacant

agriculture property to the south, vacant commercial property to the west, and partially
developed residential property to the east outside City limits.

 The parcel slopes down to Lamoille Highway.  The slope has been incorporated into the
tentative map design.

 The property will be accessed by Deerfield Way, to be developed as part of Tower Hill
Unit 3 (public improvements being installed at this time).

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(B) Single-Family Residential District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management
 City of Elko Zoning – 3-2-28 Hillside Development Regulations and Guidelines

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is BDSA, LLC.
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-929-125.
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of five residential lots and one remainder lot for future

development.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 8.601 acres.
6. The proposed density is 1.72 units per acre.
7. No phasing is proposed as part of this subdivision.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 4 of 14

8. There are one new dedicated roadway offered as part of the project (Elkhorn Circle).
9. The property is located northeast of Lamoille Highway and south of Stitzel Road.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use for the parcel is shown as Residential Medium Density, which is intended
for residential development at a density between four and eight units per acre.  The
proposed subdivision consists of a density of 1.72 units per acre.  While this is a lower
density than intended in the Master Plan, three of the five lots consist of substantial
slopes that do not lend themselves to developing any additional units. Therefore, the
Tentative Map does conform with the Master Plan.

2. The zoning for the parcel is shown as Single-Family Residential, which is a
corresponding district within the Residential Medium Density land use designation.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors.”

4. Objective one under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a
diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and
age groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of housing types in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by infrastructure that is currently being
installed as part of Tower Hill Unit 3.

5. Objective eight of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems
and no issue with regard to human health and safety.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The project will be accessed from Deerfield Way, currently being constructed as part of
Tower Hill Unit 3. Access to Deerfield Way will be from Stitzel Drive.

2. Stitzel Drive is classified as a Residential Collector street.
3. This Tentative Map consists of a single cul-de-sac. The interior circulation of the overall

Tower Hill subdivision will be provided by new roads, which have already been
dedicated to the City of Elko.

4. The Master Plan requires Residential Collector streets to have 60 feet of right-of-way.
5. Stitzel Drive has 60 feet of right-of-way. No further dedications are required.
6. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 48

additional Average Daily Trips based on 9.52 trips/single-family unit (ITE Trip
Generation, 10th Edition). This is well below the threshold for a traffic study established
in the Master Plan.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 5 of 14

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is not located within any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system, and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water, which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will
be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 6 of 14

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The land use for the parcel is shown as Residential Medium Density.
 The zoning for the parcel is shown as Single-Family Residential, which is listed in

the Master Plan as a corresponding district within the Residential Medium
Density land use designation.

 Residential Medium Density is intended for residential development at a density
between four and eight units per acre. The proposed subdivision consists of a
density of 1.72 units per acre.  While this is a lower density than intended in the
Master Plan, three of the five lots consist of substantial slopes that do not lend
themselves to developing any additional units.  Therefore, the Tentative Map does
conform with the Master Plan.

 The proposed subdivision is otherwise in conformance with the City’s Master
Plan as well as the Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 48 Average
Daily Trips to Bluffs Avenue.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT referenced in
the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.
 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is

expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 7 of 14

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

 Any comments received from other entities and persons reviewing the Tentative
Map have been incorporated either as revisions to the Map or as conditions of
approval.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

 Fire protection services are available throughout the community.
 A sufficient amount of water exists in this area for use in fire containment.
 The City of Elko Fire Department has reviewed the application materials for

compliance with all fire code requirements.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

 The subdivider/developer is required to comply with all applicable sections of
Chapters 375 and 598 of the NRS.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns that indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 8 of 14

4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to
the subdivision.

5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties are labeled on the Tentative

Map.
E. Existing Zoning:

1. The zoning is shown for the subject property. Zoning classifications for adjacent
properties are also shown on the Tentative Map.

F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:
1. The proposed interior street layout is shown. All of the streets are named and

proposed for dedication.  The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the
grading plan.  The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.
4. Street dedications are proposed for the new cul-de-sac (Elkhorn Circle).
5. Single-family residential units are allowed in the Single-Family Residential

zoning.
G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:

1. No proposed CC&R’s for the subdivision have been submitted.
H. Preliminary Grading Plan:

1. A grading plan has been provided.
I. NPDES Permit Compliance:

1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water
regulations.

J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:
1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s

infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.
2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is

shown on the utility plan.
3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be

required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.
4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans

required for Final Map submittal.
5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning as discussed in detail above.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 9 of 14

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes Deerfield Way as access,
which is currently under construction as part of Tower Hill Unit 3.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.
D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision

prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.
E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from

arterial streets. The subdivision has been designed so that all lots will front onto the
proposed cul-de-sac. All surrounding streets are local residential roads.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.
G. Topography: The proposed street has been designated to address the topography of the

area.
H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.
J. Dead-End Streets: There are no dead-end streets proposed. The streets are designed to

allow for appropriate turning movements for traffic, as well as fire trucks.
K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersection with Deerfield Way is code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths: Stitzel Road, the main access into the subdivision,
currently consists of the required 60 feet of right-of-way. All proposed streets are shown
with the required 50 feet of right-of-way.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: Any vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the streets and intersections are code

compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks are code compliant.  No other
pedestrian ways are proposed within the subdivision.  However, the developer is required
to construct a portion of the shared-use pathway on the west side of Lamoille Highway.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 10 of 14

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of lot width. Four of
the five lots (Lots 402, 403, 404, and 405) are located on the curve of the cul-de-sac and
have short front lot widths.  A modification of standards is required to make these lots
conform.

B. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

C. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the proposed streets.
D. Accessibility: The development abuts a public street. All residents will have access to

Stitzel Drive via Deerfield Way.
E. Prohibitions: No prohibitions are required for the proposed lots.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the needed
modification of standards.

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: The applicant is proposing the typical utility and drainage easements
along property lines on individual parcels. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the
subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.  The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement where needed.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.
D. Public Drainage Easement: The applicant is proposing the typical utility and drainage

easements along property lines on individual parcels.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no nearby arterial streets, therefore, there

are no lots proposed which require residents to back onto an arterial street.
G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the existing exterior streets, within

proposed side or rear easements, and in the proposed interior streets. Sanitary sewer will
tie into the existing city infrastructure at the intersection of Deerfield Way.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

The subdivider has proposed one new street name (Elkhorn Circle).

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 11 of 14

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated, as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 12 of 14

SECTION 3-2-5(B) R1 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT:

Section 3-2-5(B)(2) Principal Uses Permitted:

1. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein service to
district residents requires location within the district.

2. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with each
dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback requirements
are met.

3. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(B).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(B) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.
2. Lot dimensions are shown. The lots are in conformance with the specifications stipulated

for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of Lots 402, 403, 404, and 405.
These lots are located on the curve of the cul-de-sac and have short front lot widths.  A
modification of standards is required to make these lots conform.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code with the required modification of standards.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. This Tentative Map consists of a single cul-de-sac.  The interior circulation of the overall
Tower Hill subdivision will be provided by new roads, which have already been
dedicated to the City of Elko.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking.  Each unit
will include a two-car garage within the individual lots.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 13 of 14

SECTION 3-2-28 HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES

Based on a Slope Analysis done by the project engineer, the average slope of the parcel being
divided is 14.53%.  Section 3-2-28 identifies hillside development as any parcel with an average
slope of 15% or more.  Therefore, the subdivision does not need to conform to the regulations
and guidelines found in this section.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. State storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter from the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with both the Land Use
and Transportation components of the Master Plan as previously discussed in this report.

2. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan; the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012; the Wellhead Protection Program; or applicable sections of the Elko
City Code.

3. The proposed subdivision complies with Section 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) as discussed in this
report and as required by Section 278.349(3) of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. Therefore, there is no
conflict with the Redevelopment Plan.



Tentative Map 5-20
Tower Hill Unit 4

Page 14 of 14

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

2. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

3. The Tentative Map must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of Elko.

4. Construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to issuance of a grading permit.

5. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

6. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically
lapse at that time.

7. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

8. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.

9. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

10. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

11. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

12. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 402, 403, 404, and
405 to allow for shorter-than-required front lots widths.

13. Construction plans shall include the portion of shared-use path along Lamoille Highway
that the developer will install.

Public Works Department:

14. All public improvements at time of development per Elko City code.



















































Agenda Item # I.A.2 

Created on 6/11/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

2-20, filed by the City of Elko, for a change in zoning from AG (General 

Agriculture) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, approximately 38.09 

acres of property, to allow for the proposed development of a veterans cemetery and 

other future public uses, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: This rezone would allow for the future development of a 

Veteran’s cemetery and other future public uses.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 2-20 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 20, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:   
 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: July 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 2-20
APPLICANT: City of Elko
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

A rezone from (AG) General Agriculture to (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public initiated by the
City of Elko Planning Commission.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 2-20
City of Elko

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-01A-012

PARCEL SIZE: 38.086 acres

EXISTING ZONING: AG- General Agriculture

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES- MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: Agriculture / Undeveloped
 West: Elko County / Undeveloped
 South: Elko County / Partially developed
 East:  Residential (R) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has mild sloping.
 The area is accessed from Jennings Way, Rocky Road and Wright Way.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. City Council took action at their January 14, 2020 meeting approving an access
agreement between the City of Elko and United States of America, by and through the
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs for a portion of this property.

2. The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs is proposing to purchase the internal 15 acres of
this parcel for a future VA Cemetery.

3. A Parcel Map application has been submitted to split the parcel into 4 parcels. With the
current zoning, one of the parcels would not meet the minimum acreage of 5 acres.
Therefore, the parcel map cannot be approved with the current zoning.

4. Elko Planning Commission initiated a Master Plan amendment at their July 7, 2020



REZONE 2-20
City of Elko

Page 3 of 5

meeting to amend the land use designation from medium density residential to public.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. PQP is not a supporting zoning district for medium density residential.
3. Planning Commission initiated an amendment to the Master Plan Land Use Atlas 8 at

their July 7, 2020 meeting with a proposal from medium density residential to public. If
this amendment is approved, it would bring the master plan into conformance with the
zone amendment. Planning Commission will be hearing the resolution for the Master
Plan amendment at their August 4, 2020 meeting.

4. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan. With the approval of Master Plan Amendment 2-20, it will be in conformance.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Rocky Road, Jennings Way and Wright Way.
2. Jennings Way is classified in the Transportation Component as a minor arterial with it

being a major arterial once roadway is connected.
3. Rocky Road is classified as a Residential Collector and Wright Way as a local residential.
4. All three access roads are undeveloped and will be a condition of the future development.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and will be consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with wellhead protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;



REZONE 2-20
City of Elko

Page 4 of 5

c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-8 – PQP Public, Quasi-Public District

1. As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with Section 3-2-8.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application.

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan. Master Plan Amendment 2-20 has been initiated and with approval, it will
bring the zone amendment into conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8.

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).



REZONE 2-20
City of Elko

Page 5 of 5

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be APPROVED.



























Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 6/11/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

3-20, filed by Elko Institute for Academic Achievement, for a change in zoning from 

CT (Commercial Transitional) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, 

approximately 11.38 acres of property, to allow for the development of a school, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: This rezone would allow for the future development of a 

charter school.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 3-20 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated July 21, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated July 21, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko Institute for Academic Achievement 

Attn: Lori Lynch 

1031 Railroad Street, Suite 107 

Elko, NV 89801 

llynch@eiaanv.net 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: July 21, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: REZONE 3-20
APPLICANT: Elko Institute for Academic Achievement
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

A rezone from (CT) Commercial Transitional to (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 3-20
Elko Institute for Academic
Achievement

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-620-058

PARCEL SIZE: 9.78 acres

EXISTING ZONING: CT- Commercial Transitional

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES- HD) Residential High Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: Residential / Developed
 West: PQP / Developed
 South: PQP / Partially developed
 East: PQP / Undeveloped

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has moderate sloping.
 The area is accessed from Ruby Vista Drive and College Parkway

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The property was sold by the City of Elko to the United Methodist Church in 1992. There
was a deed restriction on the property that stated the following:
Subject to a restrictive covenant running with the land, specifically restricting and
preventing the use of the above real property for multiple family residential
developments, including, but not limited to, duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, townhouses,
apartment buildings, motels and hotels. This conveyance is made and accepted on the
express condition that the conveyed property is subject to this restrictive covenant.

2. The applicant purchased the property on March 3, 2020.



REZONE 3-20
Elko Institute for Academic
Achievement

Page 3 of 5

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Master Plan Land Use is shown as High Density Residential.
2. PQP is not a supporting zoning district for high density residential, nor will high density

residential be allowed with the deed restriction listed in the background.
3. An amendment to the Master Plan can be initiated by the Planning Commission to

designate the land use as public if the zone amendment is approved.
4. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Ruby Vista Dr. and College Parkway.
2. Ruby Vista Drive is classified in the Transportation Component as a minor arterial.
3. College Parkway is classified as a Commercial / Industrial Collector.
4. There currently is pedestrian access along both frontages.
5. Due to the high traffic at the intersection of the two roadways and the classification of

Ruby Vista Dr. the access into the parcel will have to be designed further away from
intersection.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and will be consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits inside the 30 year capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district and proposed use for the property is in conformance with wellhead
protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;



REZONE 3-20
Elko Institute for Academic
Achievement

Page 4 of 5

c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-8 – PQP Public, Quasi-Public District

1. As the property develops, it will be required to be in conformance with Section 3-2-8.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21 with the filing of this application.

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is not in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the future transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-8.

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).



REZONE 3-20
Elko Institute for Academic
Achievement

Page 5 of 5

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be CONDITTIONALLY APPROVED with the following
conditions:

1. E.I.A.A. to be actively engaged in developing the property as a school within 2 years
after date of approval. Resolution will not be signed by mayor until E.I.A.A. is actively
engaged in development.

2. Conditional Use Permit must be approved for the establishment of a new principal
permitted use and shall be governed by the conditional use permit procedure as set forth
in Elko City Code 3-2-18.































Agenda Item # I.A.4 

Created on 07/17/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 2-20, containing 

amendments to the City of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending: 1) the Proposed 

Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on six parcels of land located on S. 5th Street 

generally between Carlin Court and S. 9th Street; 2)the Land Use Section to add RO 

(Residential Office) as a corresponding zoning under the Downtown Mixed-Use land 

use designation; and 3) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on one parcel 

located at the western terminus of Rocky Road, and matters related thereto.  FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
2. Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 

 
3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
4. Time Required: 30 Minutes 

 
5. Background Information: Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the amendment 

to the City of Elko Master Plan at its July 7, 2020 meeting. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Report, Resolution with Exhibits,  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to adopt Resolution 2-20, containing amendments to the 

City of Elko Master Plan; directing that an attested copy of the foregoing parts, 

amendments, extensions of and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be certified 

to the City Council; further directing that an attested copy of this Commission’s 

report on the proposed changes and additions shall have be filed with the City 

Council; and recommending to City Council to adopt said amendments by resolution.  
 

9. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 
 

10. Agenda Distribution:  



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 2-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
AMENDING THE ELKO CITY MASTER PLAN BY UPDATING THE

PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE PLAN (ATLAS MAP 8) AND THE LAND USE
COMPONENT (CORRESPONDING ZONING DISTRICTS)

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing in
accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 278.210 and the Elko City Code,
Section 3-4-12, and

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission received public input, and reviewed and
examined documents and materials related to amending the Proposed Future Land Use
Plan (Atlas Map 8) and the Land Use Component (Corresponding Zoning Districts) of the
Elko City Master Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Elko City Planning Commission that
amended portions of the Elko City Master Plan within the Proposed Future Land Use
Plan (Atlas Map 8) and the Land Use Component (Corresponding Zoning Districts) are
attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 2, and that the amendments to the Elko City Master Plan
attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 2, are hereby adopted.

All previous versions of the amended portions of Elko City Master Plan, and all
resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

An attested copy of the Elko Planning Commission’s report on the aforementioned
changes and additions to the Elko City Master Plan shall be filed with the Elko City
Council within forty (40) days of this Resolution.

The amendment to the Elko City Master Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 2, or any
portion thereof, shall be effective upon adoption by the Elko City Council.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of August 2020 by a vote of not less than two-
thirds of the membership of the Planning Commission per NRS 278.210 (3) and Elko
City Code Section 3-4-12 (B).

By:
Jeff Dalling, Chairman

Attest:
Tera Hooiman, Secretary



AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:



kj

kjkj

kj

Jennings Way Extension

Errecart Blvd Extension

1
2
th
 S
tre

e
t E

xte
n
sio

n

C
at
tl
e
 D
r.

S
p
ru
ce
 S
t.
 E
x
te
n
si
o
n

Statice

30

7

18

8

17

20

20

2930

19

19

5

8 9

9

16

8

17

16

20 21

17

21

4

8

5

20

29

5 5

9 10

3

9

16 15

10

2221

16 15

21 22

4

1110

23

11

1415

10

15 14

22 23

22 23

3 23

12

12

13

13

2 1

11

11

14

14

23

23

24

24

36

36

21

12

61

12

13

13

24

24

36 31

31

61

36

R
. 

5
5

 E
.

R
. 

5
4

 E
.

T. 34 N. 6

6

77

6

6

1818

18

18

7

7

R
. 

5
5

 E
.

R
. 

5
6

 E
.

T. 35 N.

T. 34 N.

T. 35 N.

Atlas Map 8.
PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE PLAN

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125

Miles

Map Legend

ELKO_SYMBOLS

Descriptio

kj Future Ball Field Complex

kj Future Cemetery

Section Lines

Section Lines

Classifica

FUTURE

NEIGHBD CTR

COMM-GEN

COMM-HWY

IND-BS PARK

IND-GEN

MU-DTWN

MU-NGHBHD

PARKS-OS

PUBLIC

RES-HD

RES-LD

RES-MD

RES-RL

9

16 15

10

2221

16 15

11

1415

10

15 14

22 23

11

14

14

23

°
Printed 07/20/2020







Page 1 of 12

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: July 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.4.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 2-20 containing amendments to the City
of Elko Master Plan, specifically amending: 1) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on six
parcels of land located on S. 5th Street generally between Carlin Court and S. 9th Street; 2) the Land
Use Section to add RO (Residential Office) as a corresponding zoning under the Downtown Mixed-Use
land use designation; and 3) the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8 on one parcel located at
the western terminus of Rocky Road, and matters related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Move to adopt Resolution 2-20, containing amendments to the City of Elko Master Plan; directing that
an attested copy of the foregoing parts, amendments, extensions of and/or additions to the Elko City
Master Plan be certified to the City Council; further directing that an attested copy of this Commission’s
report on the proposed changes and additions shall have be filed with the City Council; and
recommending to City Council to adopt said amendments by resolution.

PROPOSED CHANGE #1

BACKGROUND

M&M Tile, located at 815 S. 5th Street, applied for a Parcel Map to move the lot line between two
parcels.  During the review process, it was discovered that the current zoning of the property, General
Commercial, is not a corresponding zoning for the existing Master Plan designation of Residential –
Medium Density.

A Master Plan Amendment was determined to be needed because the Master Plan requires that the
zoning of individual parcels conform with the Master Plan land use designation.  As a general practice
throughout Nevada, if these designations do not match, the project cannot be approved or a condition
of approval must be placed on the project that a Master Plan Amendment occur. In this instance, a
condition of approval was added to the Parcel Map.

Once Staff began looking more closely at this area of town, it was discovered that many parcels
surrounding S. 5th Street/Lamoille Highway have conflicting zoning and Master Plan designations.  The
proposed changes below are just to those parcels within the same block as M&M Tile.  Further Master
Plan Amendments for other parcels in the area may be forthcoming.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 2 of 12

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen on the map below, the parcels in questions are zoned General Commercial and Residential.
Surrounding properties to the west and south are also zoned General Commercial, while the parcels to
the north are zoned Residential – Special Area, and the parcels to the east are zoned Residential.

There are currently a mix of uses in the neighborhood along S. 5th Street/Lamoille Highway in this area.
The six parcels in question include a City of Elko fire station, two tile companies, and vacant land.
Mobile home parks exist in most of the surrounding area.

For the most part, the existing zoning districts make sense for this neighborhood and are not proposed
to change, with the exception of the parcel containing the fire station. A future Zone Change will need
to be processed by Staff at a later time.

The map below shows the existing Master Plan Designations for the same neighborhood.  All of the
properties surrounding the subject parcels are classified as Residential – Medium Density with the
exception of those across S. 5th Street/Lamoille Highway, which are designated as Mixed-Use
Neighborhood. In addition, there is an area designated as General Commercial approximately 500 feet
east of 9th Street along Lamoille Highway.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 3 of 12

PROPOSED CHANGES

In order to clean up the multiple discrepancies between the Master Plan designations and Zoning
districts of these six parcels, multiple changes are needed.  These are outlined below:

APN Use Current Zoning Current
Master Plan

Proposed
Master Plan

001-472-014 Fire Station General
Commercial

Residential-
Medium Density

Public

001-472-013 Commercial General
Commercial

Residential-
Medium Density

General
Commercial

001-472-015 Vacant General
Commercial

Residential-
Medium Density

General
Commercial

001-472-012 Commercial General
Commercial

Residential-
Medium Density

General
Commercial

001-473-001 Vacant General
Commercial

Mixed-Use
Neighborhood

General
Commercial

001-740-010 Vacant Residential Mixed-Use
Neighborhood

Residential-
Medium Density



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 4 of 12

The map below shows the proposed changes to the Master Plan designation of each parcel.

These changes will bring these parcels into compliance between their existing zoning districts and the
proposed land use designations (with the exception of the fire station discussed above).

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

Creating consistency between zoning and Master Plan designations aides in the growth of the
City by keeping the intended use of these parcels clear for future development.  Inconsistencies
create confusion and delay projects, which can ultimately keep somebody from building on a
parcel.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 5 of 12

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The proposed change does not have a significant impact on housing or population because most
of the parcels under consideration for this change are currently being used for commercial uses.
One vacant parcel is proposed to become new Medium-Density Residential land, which offsets
the loss of the same designation on four of the smaller parcels.

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

No change has occurred.  The amendment is warranted simply as a means to create consistency
between the zoning and land use categories.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

The uses and density permitted under the new Master Plan designations does not change
because the Master Plan is being changed to match the existing uses on the parcels.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

The proposed change to the Master Plan designations does not increase the need for facilities
such as transportation, recreation, and utilities.  With the exception of some street
improvements, which would be installed with the development of the vacant parcels, all
facilities are already in place to serve this area.

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

The proposed changes to each property’s Master Plan designation is in substantial conformance
with the following objective:

 Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.

PROPOSED CHANGE #2

BACKGROUND

Throughout the years, the City of Elko has approved several Zone Changes for individual lots along the
south side of Court Street from R (Residential) to RO (Residential Office).  The current Master Plan
designation of these properties is Downtown Mixed-Use, which does not support the Residential Office



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 6 of 12

Zoning.  Staff feels that Residential Office is a highly compatible use based on the character of the
existing neighborhood, but by allowing these zoning changes, the City is technically creating an
inconsistency between the Zoning and the Master Plan.

Staff has discussed the option of transforming Court Street into a district similar to what has previously
been done along 5th Street.  However, the Master Plan designation found along the north side of Court
Street (Residential – Medium Density) already allows for the use of Residential Office zoning.  Therefore,
it would be a much easier process (while achieving the same result as a district) to change the Master
Plan to allow for Residential Office zoning in the Downtown Mixed-Use land use designation.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen in the description below, page 18 of the Land Use section of the Master Plan currently lists only
General Commercial as a corresponding zoning district under the Downtown Mixed-Use designation.

Based on this, the highlighted properties below are not in conformance with the Master Plan.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 7 of 12

PROPOSED CHANGES

The proposed change is simply to include Residential Office as a corresponding zoning district under the
Downtown Mixed-Use designation, as shown below.

This change will bring the properties in question into conformance with the Master Plan and allow for
future Zone Changes to Residential Office.

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

The proposed amendment to include Residential Office as a corresponding zoning district under
Downtown Mixed-Use directly enhances the urban core and provides for convenient mixed-use
districts.  The existing office uses already in place and the encouragement of future residential
office uses will enhance the existing neighborhood and bring a more diverse set of uses.  These
office uses will further increase sales tax to the City.

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The proposed change does not remove any current housing stock, but does allow single-family
residences to be converted to office uses in the future, which are currently located within the
Downtown Mixed-Use designation.  There are only a handful of properties, which would fall into
this category so the impact to the overall housing supply in the City of Elko would be negligible.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 8 of 12

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

Allowing the Residential Office zoning district within the Downtown Mixed-Use land use
category not only cleans up inconsistencies on the parcels discussed above, but also allows for a
wider array of uses.  The Downtown Mixed-Use designation currently only allows for one zoning
district (General Commercial).  However, a true mixed-use area should allow for a variety of
zoning districts to create the most successful neighborhood possible.  With residential offices
and mixed-use gaining popularity throughout the country, this proposed change would open up
several additional properties within the City for this type of use.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

Allowing the Residential Office zoning district within the Downtown Mixed-Use designation is
directly compatible with, and sensitive to, the existing land uses and designations.  The parcels
that are currently incompatible with the Master Plan will become compatible.  There are several
existing parcels zoned for Residential Office across Court Street where Residential Office is
already a compatible zoning district under the Residential Medium Density designation found
there.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

The proposed change to the Master Plan does not increase the need for facilities such as
transportation, recreation, and utilities.  These facilities are already in place throughout this area
of the City.  In addition, the density of any future parcels zoned Residential Office will not
increase above what is already in place, eliminating the need for any additional facilities in the
future.

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

Allowing Residential Office as a corresponding zoning district under the Downtown Mixed-Use
district is in substantial conformance with the following objectives:

 Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area,
and for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and
overall sustainability.

 Objective 6:  Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 9 of 12

PROPOSED CHANGE #3

BACKGROUND

The United States Department of Veterans Affairs has been searching for a site in or around Elko to
serve as a new veteran’s cemetery.  After considering several parcels, the group decided that the parcel
at the western terminus of Rocky Road (APN 001-01A-012) would work best for their needs.

To begin the process, the City of Elko created a Parcel Map to divide the 38.086-acre parcel into four
parcels of various sizes.  During review of this Parcel Map, Staff discovered that one of those lots does
not conform with the minimum required lot size for the current zoning designation.  The Zoning Code
requires that all newly created lots comply with the development standards for its current zoning. If a
Parcel Map contains a non-compliant parcel, the Parcel Map cannot be approved.

Therefore, Staff determined that a Master Plan Amendment and Zone Change are required prior to the
approval of the proposed Parcel Map.

EXISTING CONDITIONS

As seen on the map below, the parcel in question is zoned General Agriculture.  Surrounding properties
to the north are also zoned General Agriculture, while the properties to the east are zoned Single-Family
and Multiple-Family Residential.  The areas to the west and south of the site are within Elko County.
Further to the south, back within City Limits, consists of Public/Quasi-Public and Single-Family
Residential districts.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 10 of 12

The map below shows the existing Master Plan Designations for the same neighborhood.  All of the
properties surrounding the subject parcel are classified as Residential – Medium Density. When the
Master Plan was approved, a large portion of this area was envisioned as being developed into single-
family residences.

PROPOSED CHANGES

The map below shows the proposed changes to the Master Plan designation of the subject parcel. The
Public designation was chosen based on the anticipated uses of the four proposed sites.  These uses
include cemetery and a support facility for the Elko County School District. A corresponding Zone
Change to Public/Quasi-Public is also being processed. If prior to development, the anticipated uses
change, further amendments may be needed.



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 11 of 12

JUSTIFICATION

The City of Elko has not adopted findings to be met by Master Plan Amendments.  However, other
jurisdictions throughout Nevada use some variation of the following findings when reviewing Master
Plan Amendments.  These are useful when considering the proposed changes.

1. The amendment/project will provide for orderly physical growth of the City, enhance the urban
core, and foster safe, convenient, and walkable neighborhoods and shopping districts.

As the City of Elko grows, large parcels such as this are becoming harder to find.  Some uses
require larger parcels such as this one, narrowing down the options of location and sometimes
conflicting with the original plan for an area.  When this happens, it is important to consider
whether or not the proposed change is in the best interest of the City and if an alternative plan
for orderly physical growth of the City can be determined.

The proposed amendment, while technically blocking the orderly physical growth of the City,
allows for the development of needed Public uses that other parcels in town are not large
enough for.  The possible future annexation of the surrounding Elko County parcels will mitigate
this conflict in the long run, but may not happen for many years.

2. The amendment/project conforms to the adopted population plan and ensures an adequate
supply of housing, including affordable housing.

The change from Residential – Medium Density to Public reduces the amount of land available
for housing in an area that has been envisioned as residential for many years.  The proposed



Master Plan Amendment 2-20

Page 12 of 12

change would ultimately reduce the amount of residential development in the City and reduce
the future property tax potential.  However, as mentioned above, if the surrounding Elko County
properties are ever annexed into the City of Elko, the loss of this parcel will be mitigated.

3. There has been a change in the area or conditions on which the current designation was based
which warrants the amendment.

There have been no changes in the area itself or overall conditions that warrant this amendment
other than the fact that the US Department of Veteran’s Affairs has requested to purchase the
property for a cemetery.  No other parcels they considered met the criteria.

4. The density and intensity of the proposed Master Plan Amendment is sensitive to the existing
land uses and is compatible with the existing adjacent land use designations.

Overall, the proposed amendment is compatible with existing adjacent land use designations.
Cemeteries are allowed in and adjacent to residentially designated parcels, such as currently
exists in another portion of town.

5. There are, or are planned to be, adequate transportation, recreation, utility, and other facilities
to accommodate the uses and density permitted by the proposed Master Plan designation.

As the proposed parcels develop, all public improvements will be required.

6. The proposed change is in substantial conformance with the goals and policies of the Master
Plan and other adopted plans and policies.

The proposed change to the property’s Master Plan designation is in substantial conformance
with the following objective:

 Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area,
major centers, and corridors to ensure the area’s adaptability, longevity, and overall
sustainability.

In addition, the proposed amendment conforms with all other adopted plans and policies within
the City of Elko.



Agenda Item # I.A.5 

Created on 9/12/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 3-

20, filed by Ruby Mountain Acton Academy on behalf of Gladys Burns, which 

would allow for a teaching of the creative arts/childcare center within an R (Single-

Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. 

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: As required by Elko City Code 3-2-5(E)(3) any teaching of 

creative arts/childcare center within a Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential 

Zoning District requires a Conditional Use Permit. 

 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 3-20 

based on the facts, findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated July 21, 

2020 
 

9. Findings: See staff report dated July 21, 2020 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Ruby Mountain Acton Academy 

Attn: Angela Heguy 

angieheguy@gmail.com 

PO Box 1332 

Elko, NV 89803 

 





Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: July 21, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 3-20
APPLICANT: Ruby mountain Acton Academy dba Acton of the

Rubies on behalf of Gladys Burns
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 675 West Birch Street

A Conditional Use Permit under Elko City Code 3-2-5 for Teaching of Creative
Arts/Childcare Center within a R- Single Family Multiple Family Residential Zoning
District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts, conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-073-001

PROPERTY SIZE: 18,300 square feet

EXISTING ZONING: R –Single Family Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as a single family residence

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by developed single family residential properties to the north,
south, east and west.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently developed.
 The property has solid fence surrounding the back yard and partially enclosing the side

yards.
 The property is currently accessed from West Birch Street.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-5 Single Family and Multiple Family Residential Zoning District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

 The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
5(E)(3).

 The applicant has permission from the property owner to apply for the CUP.
 The applicant has stated that they are currently leasing the Girl Scout House for the same

use.



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 3 of 7

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is listed as a corresponding zoning

district for Medium Density Residential in the Master Plan Land Use.
3. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component

Transportation

1. The Master Plan is accessed from West Birch Street.
2. The Master Plan identifies West Birch Street as a local residential.
3. The North side of West Birch Street as well as Dotta Drive have pedestrian access but the

south side of West Birch Street does not have pedestrian access. Sidewalks are a necessary
safety feature, particularly in residential neighborhoods where children walk to and from
the school.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area therefore, the plan was not
considered with this application.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

1. The property is located outside any capture zone for City wells.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2. Section 3-2-3 (C) City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 4 of 7

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in
conformance with ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-5(E).

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The existing principal permitted use conforms with Elko City Code 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-5 SINGLE FAMILY MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

1. The intent of the district states the following:
The purpose of the R zoning district is to provide for a mixture and diversity of housing
types for both single- family and multi-family residential development where such
development is desirable, and limited institutional, office and neighborhood service type
uses where appropriate, and to preclude land uses that would be detrimental to a mixed
and varied residential environment

2. Section 3-2-5(E) Lists Teaching of Creative Arts and Childcare Center as Conditional uses
permitted.

3. Section 3-2-5(G) The existing principal permitted use meets the table of area requirements
for setback, height, lot area, and lot dimensions.

The existing development conforms with the development standards of this section of code 3-2-5
as well as the conditional permitted uses allowed.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 5 of 7

1. 3-2-17(F) requires 1 parking stall per 6 students for Elementary schools and for Middle
School 1 per 10 students, plus 1 per employee.  The building size will determine the
occupant load allowed and off street parking will be required to be in conformance with 3-
2-17(F).

2. 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) states that in any residential zoning district other than the RMH-1 district,
no required off street parking space shall be located in a required front yard or interior side
yard. The required off street parking as a principal permitted use is not located in the front
yard setback due to a 3 car garage but for the conditional use the garage will not be
allowed to be counted toward required off street parking and therefore a variance will be
required to be approved to allow parking in the front yard setback.

Conformance with this section 3-2-17 will be required and several recommended conditions are
listed in this report.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:
1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 6 of 7

1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.
2. The proposed use is in conformance with the existing transportation infrastructure and the

Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
3. The proposed use is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
4. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5 R- Single Family and Multiple

Family Residential with the approval of the Condition Use Permit.
5. The proposed use will be required to be in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 providing

the required off street parking and approval of a variance for parking within the front yard
setback.

6. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc.
or pose a danger to human health and safety.

7. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.
8. The proposed development is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-3 & 3-2-4.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 3-20 with the following conditions:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Ruby Mountain Acton Academy.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

3. The garage and street cannot be used as part of the required off street parking stalls. All
off street parking (including required ADA van-accessible stall) must be located on the
parcel as required by the Zoning Ordinance.

4. A variance for parking in the front yard setback must be approved prior to issuing of a
building permit for the parking area. Parking requirement based on Elko City Code 3-2-
17(F). If the existing driveway is to be widened to accommodate required off street
parking, a variance will need to be approved for driveway width, Elko City Code 3-2-
17(B)(2)(b). All conditions of variance to be met prior to occupancy of the building or
issuance of a business license.

5. A Parcel Map is required to be approved and recorded prior to the opening of the school to
merge Lots 9, 10, and 11 and the vacated portion of former E Street right-of-way.

6. CUP 3-20 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the
commencement of educational use at this location.



CUP 3-20
Ruby Mtn. Acton Academy
APN: 001-073-001

Page 7 of 7

7. A designated drop-off/pick-up location shall be established. This area is to be only in front
of 675 W. Birch Street only and should be properly marked.

8. The permittee is required to prevent disruption to vehicular traffic and ensure pedestrian
safety by establishing staggered drop off and pick up times at sufficient intervals to ensure
the street is not blocked and parking does not extend beyond the frontage of 675 W. Birch
Street.

9. Drop off and pickup times are restricted to three days a week.

10. ADA ramps shall be installed in the front and rear yards and any other areas where stairs
prohibit the equitable use of the property.

11. As this is a change in occupancy, the structure shall be brought into compliance with
current building code to conform with education use. This shall include all accessibility
requirements per ICC A117.1 2009 as referenced by 2018 IBC. All work will require
permits through the City of Elko Building Department.

















































Agenda Item # I.A.6 

Created on 5/18/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 3-20, filed by Real Estate 

Pro, LLC, to allow required off street parking to be located within the interior side yard 

setback for each dwelling unit proposed to occupy a series of contiguous lots in a R (Single-

Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The property owner is proposing to build a single family dwelling 

on each of the 6 lots with parking located in the rear, adjacent to the alley. In order to 

accommodate the required off street parking, parking would encroach into the interior side 

yard setbacks.  

 
6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 
7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 
8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Variance 3-20 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions presented in Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Real Estate Pro, LLC 

Attn: Luke Fitzgerald 

521 Mountain City Hwy, #4 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

 





Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: July 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 3-20
APPLICANT: Real Estate Pro, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-096-010,11,12,13,14,15

Variance from 3-2-17(D)(2)a to allow required residential off street parking to be in the
interior side yard setback.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-096-010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015

EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped, adjacent to developed residential

BACKGROUND:
1. The applicant is the property owner.
2. The property is undeveloped as residential land use.
3. The lots were created by File #5 in 25’ wide lots.
4. The lot area is approximately 2,500 square feet. With the exception of 3-2-5(G)(2)a, it

meets the lot area requirements stipulated in code.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: R-Residential / Developed
East: R-Residential / Developed
South: R- Residential / Developed
West: R-Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently undeveloped.
The property is fairly flat.
The property has alley access in the rear.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 3 of 7

2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for
Medium Density Residential.

3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area is accessed from Fir Street as well as alley access.
2. Fir Street is classified as a Residential local.
3. Public alley in the rear of the lots.
4. The property is missing a small portion of sidewalk and therefore doesn’t have pedestrian

connectivity along Fir Street. The missing portion of sidewalk will be a condition of the
approval of the Vacation 2-20 application or will be conditioned with the building permit
if the vacation application is not approved.

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is located outside any capture zone for any City of Elko well.

The proposed use of the property does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

 No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this
subsection for the district in which it is located.

 No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in

this chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open

spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the
provisions of this chapter.



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 4 of 7

 No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part
of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for
any other building.

 No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The property, as future development is proposed for the principal permitted use as a single
family residence, conforms to Section 3-2-4 of city code.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Minimum area stipulated for the district is five thousand five hundred (5,000) square feet
for an interior lot in an existing platted subdivision characterized by twenty five foot
(25’) wide lots and situation within a residential zoning district.

2. Minimum lot width stipulated for the district of sixty feet (60’), see ** below

3. Minimum lot depth stipulated for the district of one hundred feet (100’)

4. Minimum setbacks stipulated for the district are as follows:
Front Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet (15’) (20’) to a garage.
Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20’)
Interior Side: For single family, a minimum setback of five feet six inches (5.5’)

** A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the effective
date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not meet minimum
requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a buildable lot for one single-
family dwelling, provided all other requirements of this chapter are satisfied. Therefore, this
variance is for setback consideration for the off street parking in the interior side yard only.

The proposed development for the principal permitted use of a single family residence, is in
conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

1. The proposed development is proposing two off-street parking spaces and a driveway
access off the alley into the rear yard. The property is 25’ wide and two parking spaces
would be a total of 18’ wide leaving 3’6” on each side.

2. Elko City Code 3-2-17(D)(2)a states that no required off street parking space shall be
located in a required front yard or interior side yard.

The property does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. Approval of variance 3-20 to
allow parking in the interior side yard setback will be required to bring the proposed
development into conformance.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 5 of 7

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 Applicant states: Narrow lots

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 Applicant states: Because of their width they don’t all for required parking to be
outside of interior side yard setbacks. Variance will allow the 2 required stalls to
be in the interior side yard setback.

 Staff states: Because this is a legal parcel or lot created by map, File #5, the owner
has the right to develop it with a single family residence. The proposed
development does have special circumstances because it is proposed on a very
narrow lot. The proposed principal permitted use of a single family residence is
meeting all setbacks and sections of code. The parking could only meet the
requirement of being outside the interior side yard setback if it was in tandem and
that would create a very small footprint allowed for the home.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

Applicant states: The other properties not so narrow.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 Applicant states: The variance allows for more off street parking.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 Applicant states: Allows for compliance.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 Applicant states: Only affects parking.



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 6 of 7

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.

2. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master
Plan.

3. The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is
not required.

4. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

5. The proposed development as a single family residence conforms to Section 3-2-4 of city
code.

6. A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the
effective date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not
meet minimum requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a
buildable lot for one single-family dwelling. Therefore, the minimum lot width of 60’ and
lot area of 5,000 sq. ft. is not required based on this exception.

7. The proposed development is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G) for the
principal permitted use of a single family residence.

8. The proposed development does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. A variance
for the parking in the interior side yard setback would be required to be approved for the
proposed development to be in conformance.

9. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the hardship is the
narrow lots created by File #5 and the required width of 18’ for the 2 off street parking.

10. In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has
unique circumstances based on that fact that the lots are narrow and the width of 25’
minus the 18’ parking required is less than the required interior side yard setbacks.

11. Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on other similar properties within City of
Elko which were built within the last 15 years.

12. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning
ordinance. Single family is listed as a principal use in the underlying zone.

13. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

14. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.



Variance 3-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 7 of 7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Variance 3-20 from Elko City Code section 3-2-17(D)(2)(a) is for approval of required
off street parking in interior side yard setback with access from the alley.

2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.
3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance.
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission.



1

Shelby Archuleta

From: marva santina <msantina50@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2020 3:46 PM
To: Shelby Archuleta
Subject: The alley between 2-3rd street between Cedar and Fir

Shelby,

I am writing in regard to a notice of a public meeting regarding variance No. 3-20 filed by Real Estate Pro, LLC,
for the reduction of the required interior side yard setback and required off street parking to be located within
the interior side yard setback for each dwelling unit to be proposed to occupy a series of contiquous lots in a R
Zoning District, and matters related thereto.

We live at 257 Cedar Street and park in our garage off the said alley that is proposed and being suggested for
more parking for the units being built. My concern would be regarding the safety and hazards it may cause to
any or all of us trying to use this alley. We have lived at this address for over 40 years. In that time, during any
heavy rainstorm, the alley overflows from water that runs down from 2nd street. The water has risen to our
garage door at times. In the winter, the alley is extremely icy and the snow builds up and ruts form that
make it difficult at best for our automobiles to come and go. There are 6 homes on Cedar that use this
alleyway to access our own garages already. We already have to swing out into the lot (mostly in the winter)
to get into our garages to park. My main concern would be the safety of an additional 12 cars being parked
in the alley all trying to come and go. I am concerned about how that would work especially in bad
weather. Invariably some accident is bound to happen trying to navigate through the maze of vehicles all
parked in the alleyway. Will the City widen this alleyway, maintain the alley at all times, fix the path of water
that flows down our alley? It seems like there will be way more concerns when we use the alley as a parking
lot as well as a drive through.

I do not understand why parking is not being accessed from Fir Street where there is more room for parking
and would definitely be less congested.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Marva Santina

Jim Santina

Sent from Outlook

















SHEET

OF

VERT:

SCALE
HORIZ:

D
AT

E
R

EV
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

D
ES

IG
N

 B
Y:

JO
B 

N
O

:

D
W

G
 N

O
:

LL
C

06
-2

02
0

20
20

-0
9

LL
C

LL
C

6-
30

-2
0

1"=10'
N/A

1

EL
KO

, N
EV

AD
A

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 P
R

O
, L

LC
SO

U
TH

 F
IR

 S
TR

EE
T 

PR
O

PE
R

TI
ES

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

1

(775) 397-2531

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
P.O. BOX 794

CONTACT: LANA L. CARTER, P.E.

CARTER ENGINEERING, LLC

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
2446 CRESTVIEW DRIVE

CONTACT: LUKE FITZGERALD
(775) 303-8492

(775) 738-4053

ELKO, NEVADA 89801
640 IDAHO STREET

CONTACT: ROBERT E. MORLEY, P.L.S.

HIGH DESERT ENGINEERING

REAL ESTATE PRO, LLC



Agenda Item # I.B.1. 

Created on 5/18/20  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 
1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 2-20, filed by Real Estate Pro, LLC, for the vacation of the 

southeasterly portion of Fir Street abutting APNs 001-096-010 through 001-096-015, 

consisting of an area approximately 1,500 sq. ft., and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  August 4, 2020 
 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 
 

5. Background Information: The property owner is proposing to develop the six lots with 

single family homes and would like to vacate any excess right-of-way. City Council 

accepted the petition for the vacation on July 14, 2020. CL 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 
 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  
 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Vacation No. 2-20 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

9. Findings:  See Staff Report dated July 20, 2020. 
 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Real Estate Pro, LLC 
521 Mountain City Hwy, #4 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

 

 

 
 

 

 
  





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: July 20, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: August 4, 2020
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 2-20
APPLICANT: Real Estate Pro, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-096-010,11,12,13,14,15

Vacation of the West Fir Street right-of-way

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 2-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-096-010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015

EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped, adjacent to developed residential

BACKGROUND:
1. The property is undeveloped as residential land use.
2. The area proposed to be vacated is approximately 1,500 sq. ft.
3. The City of Elko has vacated other portions of West Fir Street.
4. City Council accepted the petition for vacation at their meeting July 14, 2020 and

referred the matter to the Planning Commission for their review.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: R-Residential / Developed
East: R-Residential / Developed
South: R- Residential / Developed
West: R-Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently undeveloped.
The property is fairly flat.
The property has alley access in the rear.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for

Medium Density Residential.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.



VACATION 2-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 3 of 4

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area is accessed from Fir Street as well as alley access.
2. Fir Street is classified as a Residential local.
3. Public alley in the rear of the lots.
4. The property is missing a small portion of sidewalk and therefore doesn’t have pedestrian

connectivity along Fir Street. The missing portion of sidewalk will be a condition of the
approval and required prior to recordation.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

 The area is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 8-7 STREET VACATION PROCEDURES

1. If it is determined by a majority vote of the city council that it is in the best interest of the
city and that no person will be materially injured thereby, the city council, by motion,
may propose the realignment, change, vacation, adjustment or abandonment of any street
or any portion thereof. In addition, any abutting owner desiring the vacation of any street
or easement or portion thereof shall file a petition in writing with the city council and the
city council shall consider said petition as set forth above.

 The City Council accepted the petition at their meeting on July 14, 2020 and
referred the matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

2. Except for a petition for the vacation or abandonment of an easement for a public utility
owned or controlled by the city, the petition or motion shall be referred to the planning
commission, which shall report its findings and recommendations thereon to the city
council. The petitioner shall, prior to the consideration of the petition by the planning
commission, pay a filing fee to the city in an amount established by resolution of the city
council and included in the appendix to this code.

 The filing fee was paid by the applicant.

3. Whenever any street, easement or portion thereof is proposed to be vacated or
abandoned, the city council shall notify by certified mail each owner of property abutting
the proposed vacation or abandonment and cause a notice to be published at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the city setting forth the extent of the proposed
vacation or abandonment and setting a date for public hearing, which date may be not
less than ten (10) days and not more than forty (40) days subsequent to the date the notice
is first published.

4. Order of City Council: Except as provided in subsection E of this section, if, upon public
hearing, the City Council is satisfied that the public will not be materially injured by the
proposed vacation or abandonment, and that it is in the best interest of the city, it shall
order the street vacated or abandoned. The city council may make the order conditional,
and the order shall become effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed.



VACATION 2-20
Real Estate Pro LLC.
APN: 001-096-010 to 015

Page 4 of 4

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code.

FINDINGS

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5(E) and 8-7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Planning Commission forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt
a resolution which conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following
conditions:

1. Approved conditions are to be included in the Resolution.

2. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the vacation.

3. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to
the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.

4. Required public improvements be completed within one (1) year from date of approval
by the City Council of vacation 2-20.

5. The vacation will not be recorded until public improvements have been completed and
accepted by City of Elko staff.






































	Agenda
	07-07-20 DRAFT Minutes
	Item I.A.1. TM 5-20 Tower Hill Unit 4
	Item I.A.2. Rez 2-20 City of Elko
	Item I.A.3. Rez 3-20 EIAA
	Item I.A.4. Resolution 2-20 MPA 2-20
	Item I.A.5. CUP 3-20 Ruby Mountain Acton Academy
	Item I.A.6. Var 3-20 Real Estate Pro, LLC
	Item I.B.1. Vac 2-20 Real Estate Pro, LLC

